EXTRAORDINARY LOCAL PLAN PANEL

MINUTES of the Virtual Meeting Via Skype on Tuesday, 19 January 2021 from 7.00 - 8.20 pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Mike Baldock (Chairman), Monique Bonney (Vice-Chairman), Alastair Gould, James Hunt, Carole Jackson, Elliott Jayes, Peter Marchington, Benjamin Martin, Eddie Thomas and Ghlin Whelan.

OFFICERS PRESENT: Billy Attaway, Natalie Earl, James Freeman, Emma Gibson, Kellie MacKenzie, Jill Peet, Larissa Reed, Karen Sinclair, Anna Stonor, Claire Wade and Aaron Wilkinson

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors Cameron Beart, Lloyd Bowen, Roger Clark, Simon Fowle, Tim Gibson, Ken Ingleton, Ben J Martin, Paul Stephen, Sarah Stephen, Ken Rowles, Julian Saunders and Corrie Woodford.

400 INTRODUCTION

The Chairman explained that the meeting would be conducted in accordance with the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panel (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No. 392.

The Chairman welcomed all Members, officers and members of the public to the meeting.

401 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared.

Part A Minutes for Recommendation to Cabinet 402 RECORD OF THANKS

The Chairman paid tribute to all officers of the planning policy team who had been involved in putting the Local Plan together and their tremendous efforts during a particularly difficult year. He spoke about the raft of new approaches and policies that the new administration had wanted to incorporate into the new Local Plan when meant officers having to work to a radically different strategy and the fact that they had produced such a robust and positive local plan was a real tribute to them.

403 SWALE BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN REVIEW REGULATION 19 CONSULTATION DOCUMENT

The Planning Policy Officer introduced the report which set out the progress made to-date with the Local Plan Review document and presented headlines for the final pieces of remaining evidence that had now been completed in full. She referred to the pre-submission consultation draft local plan which was set-out at Appendix I of the report. The Planning Policy Officer stated that if approved at Full Council on 3

Local Plan Panel 19 January 2021

February 2021 the documents would then be consulted on later that month. The Planning Policy Officer outlined the four recommendations for approval contained in the covering report for Members.

The Chairman moved the four recommendations in the report, and these were seconded by the Vice Chairman.

The Chairman invited Members to ask questions. The Panel debated the proposals and the Planning Policy Officer and the Senior Planning Officer gave points of clarification where necessary.

Concern was raised that the transport modelling document was not available. The Chairman stated that the document would be available late Spring 2021. He explained that following previous modelling work with Kent County Council (KCC) Highways and Transportation they were confident that it would not throw-up any major problems. A Member agreed to speak to officers outside of the meeting about further questions he had relating to transport modelling and air pollution.

In response to a query from a Member, the Head of Planning Services advised that windfall sites could only be included for the later years of the plan. The Planning Policy Manager explained that that approach could be justified as they had a strong record of windfall sites which also included smaller sites.

Some Members raised concerns about the proposed development at Teynham which they considered was unfair on local residents and did not consider a bypass was the solution to traffic congestion which could lead to more development in the surrounding area.

Recommended:

- (1) That the summaries for the remaining evidence for the Local Plan Review be noted.
- (2) That the addendum to the Statement of Community Involvement that sets out how the Council will address Covid-19 related restrictions in light of the usual need to have hard copies of documents available for inspection.
- (3) That the Local Plan Review pre-submission draft and accompanying documents as set-out in Regulation 22 and commend them to Cabinet for approval for the purposes of public consultation and submission to the Secretary of State in accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.
- (4) That delegated authority be given to the Planning Policy Manager and Head of Planning Services, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning to agree minor amendments to the documents that are non-material prior to submission and during the course of the examination if required be granted.

Local Plan Panel 19 January 2021

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All Minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel